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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome,

          3  everyone, to today's hearing of the Public Safety

          4  Committee.  Today we'll be exploring the work of

          5  NYPD's Crime Scene Investigation Unit.  CSI.  And

          6  receive testimony regarding   --  also receive

          7  testimony regarding Intro. 123, sponsored by Council

          8  Member Nelson, who is with us this morning, which

          9  provides for cleaning and restoration of crime

         10  scenes on public and private property.

         11                 Now we've all seen the TV show CSI,

         12  and many of us are amazed by what they do on TV.

         13  What we want to know today is what's real and what's

         14  Hollywood.  And I'm sure after today, we'll be

         15  amazed at some of the things that actually happen

         16  here with the NYPD.

         17                 Crime scene evidence gathering,

         18  combined with the power of DNA, has led to the

         19  arrest and convictions of many perpetrators who

         20  would not have been caught but for these techniques.

         21    And this evidence has also been used to exonerate

         22  innocent individuals.

         23                 Today, the NYPD will be given the

         24  opportunity to explain to this Committee its CSI

         25  work, with emphasis on new techniques that have been
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          2  developed to gather evidence at crime scenes, and

          3  analyze that evidence.  The recent arrest of Darryl

          4  Littlejohn in the death of John J. College Student

          5  Imette St. Guillen, pointed to the importance of DNA

          6  forensic evidence.  The Biotracks project of the

          7  NYPD, which we'll hear about today, which uses

          8  forensic evidence and DNA to solve burglaries has

          9  successfully led to numerous arrests.

         10                 Key components of forensic evidence

         11  are DNA and DNA analysis.  At a typical crime scene,

         12  the police will gather the evidence and look for

         13  items such as hair, blood, or anything that contains

         14  even a minute trace of the defendant.  That DNA will

         15  be extracted from that sample and compared with the

         16  DNA database. We'll learn about that entire process,

         17  about the chain of custody, and where you send it,

         18  and how it gets back to you, and what safeguards are

         19  taken.

         20                 Unfortunately, New York State does

         21  not require a DNA sample from every person convicted

         22  of a misdemeanor or felony. Instead, the State

         23  collects DNA from fewer than half of those convicted

         24  of felonies in the State, and is one of only seven

         25  states that do not catalog DNA profiles for all
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          2  convicted felons.  A recent State Investigation

          3  Commission report, released March 20, 2006,

          4  recommends collecting DNA evidence from anyone

          5  convicted of a crime, felony, or misdemeanor.  As

          6  does every public safety expert that's ever

          7  testified before this Committee, every district

          8  attorney, the Attorney General, of the Criminal

          9  Justice Court I believe, on the State level.

         10                 And I have called for this for years

         11  now.  And I have reintroduced a resolution that

         12  calls on the State to adopt this type of

         13  legislation.  Take DNA samples from everyone

         14  convicted of a crime here in New York.  Let's hope

         15  that happens one day.

         16                 What happens after CSI leaves the

         17  scene, though?  We don't  --  you don't see that

         18  part on TV.  We'll consider Intro. 123, which

         19  provides for cleaning and restoration of crime

         20  scenes in both public and private property.  Crime

         21  scenes produce many undesirable results, including

         22  the accumulation of blood, and remnants of human

         23  remains.  These things are difficult to clean. It's

         24  often left to grieving families to perform this

         25  task.  Council Member Nelson has introduced a bill
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          2  that requires the City to provide a list of property

          3  owners that clean crime scenes, or to clean the

          4  property if the owner does not avail himself of

          5  these services.  The bill further obligates the City

          6  to clean crime scenes on public property, and list

          7  some of the procedures to be employed.

          8                 Council Member Nelson, thank you  --

          9  he's not a member of this Committee, but obviously,

         10  it's his bill, and he feels strongly about it, and

         11  is here with us today.  And I'd like to give you an

         12  opportunity to speak on that bill.  And also

         13  recognize the fact that we're joined by Council

         14  Member Addabbo, one of my colleagues from Queens.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you

         16  Chairman Vallone. And thank you for members of the

         17  Police Department for being here.

         18                 This was all predicated upon a

         19  situation that  -- near where is used to live.  And

         20  as a matter of fact, some officers were shot, you

         21  may recall, it was off Ocean Parkway in Brooklyn. I

         22  think it was about three or four years ago.  And I

         23  was surprised --  it was the first time I learned

         24  about the situation that no one really had to come

         25  and clean it up.  Where it fell upon the homeowner.
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          2  And there were bricks that were shot, and glass.

          3  And of course, if there's parts of  --  could be

          4  anything.  Parts of your brain, parts of your body,

          5  or blood all over the place.  And it seemed to me

          6  that if it falls upon a citizen who was already

          7  traumatized, the homeowner, or the apartment

          8  dweller, it just didn't seem right or fair, because

          9  they're often traumatized, obviously, by these

         10  events, to begin with.  And not only are they

         11  emotionally and often physically unprepared to deal

         12  with the job, they also lack the appropriate

         13  knowledge and/or supplies to safety discard

         14  hazardous materials found on site, or the ability to

         15  effectively decontaminate the premises if there are

         16  biohazards.

         17                 It is apparent that serious health

         18  and safety issues arise when citizens, and not City

         19  agencies and/or private crime scene clean up

         20  companies perform this undertaking.  Professionals

         21  who specialize in hazardous waste clean up should be

         22  at this responsibility as to ensure the safe

         23  restoration of crime scenes. And to relieve property

         24  owners of the psychological, physical, and financial

         25  burden associated with this obligation.  Realize, of
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          2  course, like anything else, it's a monetary problem.

          3    But when I saw, as usual, you know there were

          4  people walking their dogs in that area, and kids

          5  going back and forth, I couldn't help but think if a

          6  dog started slurping it up, and maybe then kissing

          7  their family members.  And kids also falling.  It

          8  just didn't seem right that that should be the

          9  situation.  So hence, I brought 123 to the floor,

         10  and I appreciate Chairman Vallone entertaining this.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you

         13  Council Member.  And I should state that Council

         14  Member Nelson has been a most vociferous advocate of

         15  getting this bill heard.  And we heard it today.

         16  One of the reasons we heard it today was to stop him

         17  from calling me and harassing me to get this bill

         18  heard.  But it is something that we actually should

         19  be looking into.  And not only what happens once CSI

         20  gets there, but once CSI leaves.

         21                 I am very much looking forward to the

         22  presentation today.  As a former Assistant, I like

         23  to know what updates have been going on since I've

         24  been gone in proving crimes.  And I know about the

         25  problems you face, due to the fact that after

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  watching these shows on TV, the jury pools expect so

          3  much of you and much of that is not actually true,

          4  what we see on TV.

          5                 So we have with us Deputy Inspector

          6  Gary Gomula, Commanding Officer of the New York City

          7  Police Department's Crime Scene Unit.  Thank you.

          8  And the floor is yours.

          9                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: Thank you.

         10  Good morning Chairman Vallone and members of the

         11  Council.  I am Deputy Inspector Gary Gomula,

         12  Commanding Officer of the New York City Police

         13  Department's Crime Scene Unit.  I'm joined today by

         14  Lieutenant Sherry Bishop, Commanding Officer of the

         15  Patrol Borough of Queens North Evidence Collection

         16  Team.  On behalf of Police Commissioner Raymond

         17  Kelly, I am pleased to be here today to discuss the

         18  NYPD's investigation of crime scenes.

         19                 We appreciate the opportunity to

         20  address the topic of high public interest, that is

         21  demonstrated by the popularity of television shows

         22  focusing on the skills and technology used to

         23  collect and analyze evidence of crime.  This recent

         24  phenomenon has its benefits, in that juries are more

         25  likely to find crime scene technicians and the
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          2  evidence they present to the jury more

          3  understandable, more interesting, and hence, more

          4  credible.  These shows have also drawn more students

          5  to focus on forensic science as a career.

          6                 But what we call the "CSI Effect"

          7  also has its drawbacks.  Criminal investigations and

          8  jury trials may be affected by an expectation that

          9  every case will be proven conclusively by forensic

         10  evidence.  Which is assumed to be at all crime

         11  scenes and to solve the crime, virtually

         12  immediately.  Viewers, who make up jury pools, are

         13  being shown techniques and technology that sometimes

         14  do not exist, and may not be as conclusive or

         15  absolute as they are portrayed.  We are therefore

         16  pleased to described how the NYPD actually handles

         17  crime scenes.

         18                 The mission of the Crime Scene Unit

         19  is to assist other investigative units or agencies

         20  in identifying the person responsible for the

         21  commission of a crime.  The Unit provides a rapid

         22  and coordinated response by trained crime scene

         23  investigators, whose purpose is to search for,

         24  identify, document, collect, package, and preserve

         25  forensic or physical evidence for laboratory
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          2  analysis and courtroom presentation.  We seek to

          3  describe the people, places, and things involved in

          4  the crime  We help to establish investigative leads,

          5  and reconstruct the events through the construction

          6  or collection of evidence often including, or

          7  excluding suspects.

          8                 We also document the scene in the

          9  form of sketches and photographs.  All of our

         10  efforts must conform to the standards required by

         11  the courts, and the guidelines set forth by the

         12  laboratories that receive and analyze the evidence

         13  we collect.  The members of the Crime Scene Unit

         14  must be prepared to provide relevant, professional,

         15  and impartial testimony regarding the evidence they

         16  have collected, and the analysis they have

         17  performed.

         18                 The Crime Scene Unit is called in

         19  response to a specific set of crimes or events:

         20  Homicides; assaults where the victim is likely to

         21  die; pattern robberies; burglaries involving

         22  patterns, or circumvented alarms, or forced safes;

         23  sexual assault or child abuse cases, when requested

         24  by the Borough Special Victims Squad; and also home

         25  invasions.

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 The Crime Scene Unit will also

          3  respond to any crime or incident where the

          4  specialized services or equipment it may provide are

          5  needed.  For example: Suspicious deaths; kidnapping;

          6  disasters involving deaths or injuries; explosions;

          7  and terrorism related incidents.  In 2005, the Crime

          8  Scene Unit processed a total of 1,911 scenes.

          9                 For all other crime scenes which

         10  require evidence collection, the entity within the

         11  Department which repents is the Patrol Borough

         12  Evidence Collection Team, which I will describe in

         13  more detail later.

         14                 When the Crime Scene Unit arrives at

         15  a location, the area has generally been secured by

         16  responding patrol officers and detectives, who will

         17  brief the Crime Scene Unit investigators on the

         18  events, as far as they have been able to determine

         19  them.  Crime Scene Unit personnel will then conduct

         20  a preliminary walk through to identify and

         21  prioritize evidence, and locate the areas of

         22  forensic importance.  We will photograph the entire

         23  scene, and any evidence collected.  This may include

         24  photographing victims, either at the scene or

         25  perhaps at a hospital, at a station house where they
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          2  are being interviewed, or if they are deceased, at

          3  the morgue. Efforts to treat a victim at the scene

          4  may also be accounted for as we attempt to determine

          5  what the scene looked like at the time of the crime,

          6  rather than after medical personnel arrives.  If a

          7  deceased person is at the scene, the Crime Scene

          8  Unit will coordinate efforts with the responding

          9  Medical Legal Investigator from the Office of the

         10  Chief Medical Examiner, in examining and

         11  photographing the body.

         12                 Depending on the circumstances,

         13  documentation of the scene may include a hand-

         14  crafter's sketch, photographic log, evidence log,

         15  body wound chart, clothing and vehicle charts.  The

         16  location of all items of evidence will be

         17  documented, utilizing two fixed measurement points

         18  to provide reconstruction if needed.  We may also

         19  use computers to create sketches of the scene, and

         20  pinpoint the location of the evidence.

         21                 There are many types of instruments

         22  we use to aid in the investigation and

         23  reconstruction of the scene.  We use ballistic

         24  alignment lasers and rods to determine the

         25  trajectory of bullets.  We use forensic alternate
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          2  light sources and chemicals to find body fluids and

          3  other forensic evidence such as hair, fibers, and

          4  latent fingerprints, which are not immediately

          5  visible.  We use gunshot residue collection kits,

          6  DNA/serology sampling kits, metal detectors, plaster

          7  casting materials DNA recovery swabs, and several

          8  types of powders to recover fingerprints from a

          9  variety of surfaces.  We are also equipped with the

         10  proper measurement, collection, and evidence

         11  packaging materials, which must be appropriate to

         12  the type of evidence collected.

         13                 We may take additional photographs to

         14  document witness locations, or provide aerial views,

         15  or to identify any obstructions affecting a

         16  witness's ability to see or hear an incident.  We

         17  will not relevant scene conditions, such as

         18  lighting, whether windows are open or closed, locked

         19  or unlocked, and whether there are blood trails.  We

         20  will search for any items of investigative value,

         21  for example, contraband, weapons, jewelry.  We will

         22  remove sink traps and collect the contents in order

         23  to obtain evidence of cleanup after a crime.  We

         24  document ballistic damage to walls and floors, tool

         25  marks, blood spatter patterns, and shoe wear
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          2  impressions.  We also conduct a wider search for

          3  evidence, perhaps including nearby parks, rooftops,

          4  gutters, sewers, mail boxes, garbage cans,

          5  dumpsters, gated areas, and ledges.

          6                 As part of our evidence collection

          7  function, we must also be keenly aware of the

          8  possibility of contamination and cross

          9  contamination, and we therefore use personal

         10  protective equipment such as Tyvek suits, rubber

         11  boot covers, shoe covers, head covers, sleeve

         12  covers, and different types of gloves, depending

         13  upon the varied conditions and materials we are

         14  handling.

         15                 When we have finished processing a

         16  crime scene, we conduct a final walk- through and

         17  release the scene to the detectives or other police

         18  personnel present.  Evidence we collect is

         19  vouchered, and depending upon what it is, delivered

         20  either the NYPD Property Clerk, or a laboratory with

         21  the request for analysis. DNA evidence obtained in

         22  connection with homicides, sex crimes, and other

         23  crimes of violence, is analyzed by the Office of the

         24  Chief Medical Examiner.  Hair and fiber evidence is

         25  analyzed by the NYPD Police Laboratory.  Firearms
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          2  and ballistic evidence is analyzed by the NYPD

          3  Firearms Analysis Section.

          4                 What I have described so far is the

          5  work of the Crime Scene Unit.  However, there is

          6  another important aspect of the NYPD's handling of

          7  crime scenes.  The work of the Patrol Borough- based

          8  Evidence Collection Teams.

          9                 Every patrol borough has a team which

         10  responds to the crime scenes which do not fall

         11  within the Crime Scene Unit's jurisdiction.  These

         12  are generally assaults and non- pattern robberies,

         13  where the victim is not likely to die, burglaries,

         14  and grand larceny cases.  In 2005, the Evidence

         15  Collection Teams Citywide responded to over 33,000

         16  calls.  The members of the Evidence Collection Teams

         17  are trained by the Crime Scene Unit, and are

         18  equipped with some of the same tools.  For example

         19  cameras, fingerprint kits, DNA swabs, and packaging

         20  materials.  Depending upon the circumstances, they

         21  follow similar protocols in handling a crime scene:

         22  Taking photographs; collecting and packaging

         23  evidence; creating crime scene sketches; and

         24  submitting evidence for analysis.

         25                 In the past, the work of the Evidence
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          2  Collection Teams generally focused on the collection

          3  of latent fingerprints from the scenes of burglaries

          4  and grand larcenies.  However, the Department has

          5  recently expanded their scope to include collection

          6  of DNA evidence connected to burglaries and other

          7  crimes.  Started as a pilot project called

          8  Biotracks, in Patrol Borough Queens North in 2003,

          9  Biotracks has been expanded Citywide to all Evidence

         10  Collection Teams, which now collect DNA evidence

         11  from many sources at a burglary scene.

         12                 For example, items of clothing left

         13  behind by the perpetrator, cigarette butts, blood,

         14  and bottles or cans. Biotracks is also utilized by

         15  the Crime Scene Unit.  The evidence is forwarded to

         16  the NYPD Police Laboratory, where it is evaluated

         17  for trace evidence, and then forwarded to a private

         18  laboratory for DNA analysis.

         19                 Before I close, I would like to

         20  provide our comments regarding Intro. 123, which

         21  would require the City to clean the affected areas

         22  of a crime scene on public property, and which would

         23  require the Police Department to clean a crime scene

         24  on private property, if the owner cannot afford or

         25  chooses not to pay for cleaning services.  While we
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          2  understand the Council's intent to assist the

          3  victims of crime, we strongly oppose this bill.  The

          4  bill shifts responsibility for the clean up of a

          5  crime scene from private property owners to the

          6  Police Department.  This is not the role of the

          7  NYPD, nor should it be.

          8                 The potential cost to the City for

          9  the cleaning contemplated by the bill, could be

         10  staggering.  Especially since the definition of

         11  crime scene is extremely broad, and could cover

         12  incidents beyond what we would normally consider a

         13  crime scene, such as suicides or drug overdoses.

         14  Where the crime scene contains blood, or other

         15  bodily fluids, if the City or Police Department were

         16  to clean the scene, it could require specially-

         17  trained and equipped personnel, who can properly

         18  dispose of medical waste.  We are not prepared to

         19  undertake this responsibility on private property.

         20                 On an individual basis, the victims

         21  of crimes have access to resources to assist them in

         22  cleaning their property, such as the Crime Victims

         23  Compensation Board, and their homeowner's insurance

         24  policies.

         25                 When we release a crime scene, we
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          2  typically provide advice to the property owners

          3  about how to clean the property.  But I note that

          4  police officers do not refer victims to companies

          5  providing cleaning services, since our Department

          6  rules prohibit us from making such business

          7  referrals.

          8                 If we have had to damage property in

          9  the course of our investigation, the property owner

         10  may file a notice of claim against the City in order

         11  to be compensated.  But we must strongly disagree

         12  with the approach taken in the bill, to make the

         13  City responsible for crime scene clean up, whether

         14  on private or public property.

         15                 I thank you for the opportunity to be

         16  here today, and we will be pleased to answer your

         17  questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you

         19  Inspector.  I'm just going to go in the order that

         20  you went here.

         21                 Paragraph four on the first page, you

         22  said that the mission of the Crime Scene Unit is to

         23  assist other investigative units.  And you went

         24  through, a little bit later on, about how they

         25  cordon off the scene for you, and then you show up.
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          2  Basically, just like we see on TV.

          3                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: Correct,

          4  sir.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Tell us how that

          6  interaction occurs.  Who is actually in charge of

          7  the scene?  And how do you interact with different

          8  police personnel?

          9                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: Generally,

         10  what would happen is that Patrol Service Bureau, or

         11  precinct is going to be the first to respond, either

         12  based upon a  --  usually based on the 911 call.

         13  Precincts are going to respond.  They're going to

         14  make an evaluation as to what the scene is, and what

         15  actually crime has taken place at the scene.  If the

         16  crime is such that the Crime Scene Unit is going to

         17  be called, generally also the Detective Squad is

         18  going to be responding to the scene.  We will be in

         19  contact with the Detective Squad upon their arrival.

         20    They will provide for us preliminary information

         21  as to what they have at the scene, how extensive the

         22  scene may be, and what their initial take as to the

         23  investigation on their end is, and their needs are

         24  going to be.

         25                 We're going to then arrive, and when
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          2  we arrive, there will be another briefing between us

          3  and the Detective Squads at the scene.  Basically,

          4  what we're looking for at that point is information

          5  that may be already relayed to them from witnesses,

          6  as well as possible victim information, as well as

          7  our possible perp information, that now extends the

          8  crime scene, and gives us an area that we're looking

          9  at for forensic value.

         10                 Once we have that information, and we

         11  have a general take on what has happened here, at

         12  that point, we do our initial walk- through.  Our

         13  initial walk- through is for us to be able to

         14  identify certain evidence and for us to prioritize

         15  evidence. Naturally, if we're outside, and we're

         16  looking to collect blood, and the weather situation

         17  is getting such that we have the potential for rain,

         18  blood would be collected as a priority.  So there

         19  are certain prioritization that we go through.

         20                 Our interaction throughout the scene

         21  is going to be our contact with the Detective Squads

         22  as they continue through their interview and canvass

         23  process.  Once we're finished with the scene as far

         24  as forensic evidence collection, we will then turn

         25  the scene back to the Detective Squad for their
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          2  final analysis.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Who is in charge

          4  then  --  at that point, your Unit, or the

          5  Detectives are in charge?

          6                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: We're in

          7  charge of the actual crime scene as far as the scene

          8  itself, as far as the collection of forensic

          9  evidence.  The scene itself would come under the

         10  auspice of the Detective Commander, or the highest

         11  ranking Detective person at the scene, as far as the

         12  investigation of the scene.  The overall scene is

         13  the responsibility of the Patrol Service Bureau

         14  Commander.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  And you

         16  say in that same sentence that you have trained

         17  Crime Scene Investigators, obviously.  What type of

         18  training does your Unit provide and undertake?

         19                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: What we

         20  generally do is  -- especially over the last couple

         21  of years, meaning probably the last five to six

         22  years  --  we provide general fingerprint training

         23  for Evidence Collection Teams.  Evidence Collection

         24  Team personnel provide their function in the

         25  Evidence Collection Team in the Patrol Boroughs.  We
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          2  recruit for the most part, from the Evidence

          3  Collection Teams.  So as the Commanding Officer of

          4  Crime Scene, I have the benefit to be able to see

          5  how an individual actually processes crime scenes,

          6  and how they handled what would be considered lesser

          7  crime scenes, as opposed to what we handle.

          8                 But they still perform the same

          9  typical functions, as far as fingerprint, and

         10  fingerprint identification, and latent fingerprint

         11  identification and development.  So I have a good

         12  sense, at that point, as to what their capabilities

         13  are, and how they actually interact in a crime scene

         14  prior to the time they come to us.

         15                 Through an interview process and a

         16  selection process, they're selected into the Crime

         17  Scene Unit.  Once they arrive in the Crime Scene

         18  Unit, what they will basically go through with us is

         19  an initial orientation, which will be about a week.

         20  The week orientation will be basically our

         21  explanation of our investigative process in the

         22  Detective Bureau, as far as crime scene, our

         23  paperwork, as far as photograph evidence, photograph

         24  log, evidence logs, what we provide to the Criminal

         25  Justice System, as far as necessary documentation,
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          2  response to subpoenas.

          3                 And then we would also do what would

          4  be initial training.  The initial training is

          5  training that goes beyond what they would have

          6  received in ECT.  In ECT, besides fingerprint

          7  training, they also receive DNA evidence collection

          8  training, as well as evidence packaging training.

          9  We're now going to explain to them specialized

         10  equipment that we use in the Crime Scene Unit, and

         11  what its limitations are, and uses are.

         12                 After that, they'll be teamed up with

         13  a senior member of the Crime Scene Unit for a

         14  minimum of six months, in which the senior member

         15  collects  --  will actually be the case assigned

         16  detective or investigator, and they would actually

         17  do an on- the- job type of internship with us.

         18  Then, eventually, they'll also go through three

         19  weeks of crime scene training, which would include,

         20  at that point, all of the equipment that we

         21  currently use. We would also bring in guest speakers

         22  from the Medical Examiner's Office to explain in

         23  detail the role of the Medical Legal Investigator,

         24  as well as the role of the pathologists, and the

         25  role of the Medical Examiner's Office, and what they
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          2  provide.  We would do some detailed case

          3  information.  And we also bring in, generally at

          4  that point, representatives from the District

          5  Attorney's Office, to explain to them what they can

          6  expect as far as their courtroom testimony, and

          7  their courtroom demeanor.

          8                 At that point, we're about a year at

          9  that point, into their experience in crime scene.

         10  They would be just about eligible to start to

         11  actually process scenes on their own.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So it's a year

         13  in training in addition to what they receive from

         14  the Evidence Collection Unit. That's pretty

         15  impressive.  How long do they stay in the Unit then,

         16  after that?

         17                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: Typically,

         18  for most that come into the Crime Scene Unit, we

         19  don't lose too many to anything except for

         20  retirements.  So they come into the Unit mostly with

         21  the desire to be in the forensic evidence collection

         22  field, in the Crime Scene Unit field.  So most of

         23  what they do at that point is, they're going to

         24  spend a good bulk of their career.  Ten, twelve

         25  years in the Crime Scene Unit.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And do they

          3  receive any commensurate salary or rank increase

          4  when they get into the Unit?

          5                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: As coming

          6  into the Crime Scene Unit, what happens, as

          7  difference from the Evidence Collection Team, is

          8  that the Evidence Collection Team, being a Patrol

          9  Service Bureau entity, when they come into the Crime

         10  Scene Unit, they actually enter into the Detective

         11  Bureau.  When they come into the Detective Bureau,

         12  they are bought into what's called the Investigative

         13  Track.  Based upon 18 months of successful

         14  completion of investigative time, and

         15  recommendations from their supervisors, they will be

         16  promoted to Third Grade Detectives.  And then, at

         17  that point, they'll proceed through their

         18  investigative components, or their time in the

         19  Detective Bureau, with the potential to be able to

         20  be promoted to Second or First Grade Detective.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And do you have

         22  a specific location for your Unit?  Are they

         23  dispersed throughout the precinct?  How does it

         24  work?

         25                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: The Crime
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          2  Scene Unit is centralized at this point at the

          3  Police Laboratory, which is located on Jamaica

          4  Avenue in Jamaica, Queens.  And we dispatch from

          5  that location.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And the Evidence

          7  Collection Unit, now that's out of every precinct?

          8  Or how does that work?

          9                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: Evidence

         10  Collection Teams, such as the Lieutenant's,

         11  basically they're patrol- based.  Patrol borough

         12  based.  So they're within each Patrol Borough.  They

         13  basically, for the most part, respond out of one

         14  location to cover the whole Patrol Borough.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  Before I

         16  get to some more specifics, I want to give you a

         17  chance to boast a little bit. We've all heard of the

         18  fine forensic work done in the Imette St. Guillen

         19  case.  Are there any other cases, either recently,

         20  or that stand out in your mind, that would not have

         21  been solved but for forensic evidence of the type

         22  you discussed?

         23                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: Specific

         24  cases, generally, especially ongoing cases, we

         25  wouldn't basically discuss for the most part.  But
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          2  we do solve an awful lot of cases through DNA and

          3  DNA evidence collection.  We also solve an awful lot

          4  of cases through fingerprint and fingerprint

          5  identification.  The DNA, which is now being

          6  considered the fingerprint of the 21st Century,

          7  plays a major role in what we do, and we have an

          8  ongoing dialogue with the Medical Examiner's Office

          9  concerning DNA evidence, and our collection of DNA

         10  evidence, and their analysis.  Biotracks was a major

         11  initiative, not so much with crime scene, but an

         12  initiative to be able to address burglaries and

         13  other crimes that we looked. And DNA evidence has

         14  done very well as far as that's concerned.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You mentioned

         16  the Medical Examiner.  What I understand, that DNA

         17  evidence has to go through a long trail once you

         18  pick it up.  Rather than me go through it, why don't

         19  you explain, once your Unit recovers DNA evidence on

         20  the scene, what happens?

         21                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: We recover

         22  DNA evidence, or what we think could generate

         23  potential DNA evidence.  What happens at that point

         24  is we package it at that scene, it gets turned over

         25  to a precinct police officer who vouchers it.
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          2  Certain evidence will first come to the Police

          3  Laboratory to be looked at, such as hair evidence.

          4  But for the bulk of what we're looking at in DNA,

          5  such as blood, saliva, semen, that type of evidence

          6  is going direct to the Medical Examiner's Office

          7  Forensic Biology Unit.  They will extract possible

          8  DNA from any of that evidence.  They'll go through

          9  the DNA process.  Their current process is PCR/STR,

         10  which is accepted by the State, and also by CODIS,

         11  which is the federal government.  Once they have a

         12  DNA profile, which is a complete profile, would be

         13  13 loci, they will upload the profile itself to

         14  their general database, which is a database of the

         15  Medical Examiner's Office.  They will also take that

         16  profile and extend it over to the State database.

         17  The State  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: This is out of

         19  the Police Lab now?

         20                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: This is out

         21  of the Medical Examiner's Office.  The Medical

         22  Examiner's Office exclusively does DNA.  The Police

         23  Lab does no DNA.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Do you send to a

         25  private DNA companies?
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          2                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: Biotracks

          3  was the system in which  --  what happened in

          4  Biotracks was that generally, the Medical Examiner's

          5  Office accepts DNA evidence in homicide cases,

          6  sexual assault and rape cases, cases where an

          7  individual is likely to die, member of the service,

          8  or a member of the Police Department or City agency

          9  service cases.  But lesser cases, such as

         10  burglaries, robberies where an individual is not

         11  likely to die, grand larceny autos, home invasions,

         12  weren't being accepted or processed by the Medical

         13  Examiner's Office.  In 2003, we were looking at the

         14  idea of a rise in burglaries.  The rise in

         15  burglaries, the most significant rise in burglaries

         16  Citywide, was happening in Queens.  Specifically

         17  areas of Queens North.  In trying to address that,

         18  we looked at the idea of implementing a DNA pilot

         19  project.  Other jurisdictions, Nassau County,

         20  Suffolk County, have been very successful in DNA

         21  inter- connections through recidivism of burglary

         22  perpetrators.  So we implemented the pilot project

         23  originally in Queens.  The implementation of the

         24  project worked very well for us.  What happens at

         25  that point, is that items that are collected by the
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          2  Evidence Collection Team are sent to the Police

          3  Laboratory.  The Police Laboratory will examine the

          4  items for possible DNA extraction, and possible

          5  items that would generate DNA.  Naturally, they

          6  would be identifying stains, any type of body fluid

          7  stains, hairs, any type of swabbing that may be

          8  necessary from a bottle for skin cells.  And then at

          9  that point, they package that evidence and they send

         10  it to two vendors that are currently contracted

         11  through us, through the NIJ grant, the National

         12  Institute of Justice grant, for Biotracks.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me just slow

         14  you down a second, because I'm a little confused.

         15  If either one of your Units collects DNA from the

         16  scene, they both go to the Police Lab, and then

         17  yours is sent to the Medical Examiner, and theirs is

         18  sent to the private companies?  Or --

         19                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: No.  What

         20  happens is that Biotracks is utilized by Evidence

         21  Collection Teams for burglaries, burglaries mostly.

         22  Also utilized for robberies, and utilized for some

         23  grand larceny cases that they process.  The Crime

         24  Scene Unit, we utilize Biotracks for home invasions,

         25  and some other crimes that we process that generally
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          2  are not that  --  the evidence is not generally

          3  accepted by the ME's Office.  All of those cases go

          4  to the Police Laboratory first.  From the Police

          5  Laboratory, they are forwarded to the two vendors

          6  that are currently in the Biotracks programs.  For

          7  major crimes, homicides, sexual assaults, rapes,

          8  child abuse cases, and other major crimes, Crime

          9  Scene responds, and we send that evidence direct to

         10  the Medical Examiner's Office.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Now it's the

         12  Medical Examiner's Office that then sends this

         13  evidence to the DNA index system for the match and

         14  for the cataloging?

         15                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: In both

         16  cases, what happens is that the private vendor

         17  uploads what's called the DNA profile. The DNA

         18  profiles are  --  a complete DNA profile is what's

         19  called 13 loci.  That identifies and individual to a

         20  mathematical probability of one in three billion,

         21  which means it identifies a specific person.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Unless you're

         23  O.J. Simpson, and then  --

         24                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: Other

         25  profiles may be less than 13 loci.  What happens at
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          2  that point is that all DNA profiles are sent either

          3  by private labs to the ME's Office.  The Medical

          4  Examiner's Office makes a verification as to the

          5  procedure that was used for the DNA extraction, and

          6  also verifies the profile itself, prior to them

          7  uploading it to their local database, and the State

          8  database.  And that's basically an agreement,

          9  basically through the State, so that they verify as

         10  in American Society of Crime Lab Director's

         11  supervised laboratory that the profile is correct.

         12  At that point, they'll run the profile against the

         13  local database, which is the Medical Examiner's

         14  database.  They'll also, at that point, extract that

         15  profile and send it to the State database, and then,

         16  what will happen from the State database, the New

         17  York State Department of Criminal Justice Services

         18  will send that profile to the CODIS database, which

         19  is the federal database.  All returns concerning

         20  those profiles will come back to the Medical

         21  Examiner's Office, and then be redistributed to the

         22  Police Department for investigation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And all of those

         24  transfers occur after you have obtained it and sent

         25  it through your Unit.  So how is the chain of
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          2  custody and the preservation of this DNA insured?

          3                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: Basically,

          4  we insure it through training on our end, training

          5  on the Evidence Collection end as to the proper

          6  packaging of bodily fluids.  Body fluids basically

          7  are packaged in paper.  They're also packaged in a

          8  variety of packing that's methodologies that we use

          9  that are accepted by the laboratories.  Our

         10  packaging methodologies have to be accepted by the

         11  laboratories that we send the packages to because

         12  the New York City Police Laboratory, as well as the

         13  Medical Examiner's laboratory, is governed under

         14  what's called the American Society of Crime Lab

         15  Director's accreditation process.

         16                 So we basically collect the evidence,

         17  maintain that it's packaged properly, maintain that

         18  we have no cross contamination, or contamination

         19  issues in the packaging, and then forward it through

         20  the precinct vouchering system to the ME's Office.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's almost as

         22  boring as I remember it in the courtroom.  About the

         23  same custody stuff that you have to prove in every

         24  case.  It goes much deeper than that obviously, but

         25  I won't make you go through it.
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          2                 Other than DNA  --  we all know what

          3  can be done with DNA  --  do you still do hair

          4  comparisons, and blood- type comparisons?  Are those

          5  passe now that we have DNA evidence?

          6                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: Hair

          7  comparison is still done.  Conventional hair

          8  comparison is still done.  With the sergeancy of

          9  DNA, especially in the 1990s, what happened is, that

         10  beyond hair comparisons, the general hair

         11  comparisons are looked at as to whether or not they

         12  are human hairs, as to whether or not they are

         13  animal hairs.  Beyond that, the hair is now looked

         14  at for DNA potential.  If there is a hair root, it

         15  would be considered to be nuclear DNA, which is the

         16  general process.  If there is not a root, but just a

         17  fragment of a hair, they'll go to what's called

         18  mitochondrial DNA, which is the maternal side of the

         19  individual known.  But hair at this point is still

         20  looked at as it was normally looked at, meaning for

         21  origin, human, nonhuman, looks for basically race,

         22  and looks to be able to actually create class

         23  characteristics or class information concerning the

         24  hair.  It's further looked at for DNA processing.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  --  Or is it
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          2  always done with the DNA?

          3                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: We do hair

          4  without DNA, if in fact that's basically what we're

          5  looking at, just hair, meaning that we may be

          6  looking at a scene as to was a dog involved, or was

          7  a dog in a car?  At that point, we would take hair

          8  samples from a car, and looking at the hair samples,

          9  we would send them to the lab for the lab to

         10  determine the hair that's removed from the car, is

         11  it dog hair or human hair?  Does it come back to

         12  what species of dog?  What type of investigative

         13  information can be gleaned from the hair besides, or

         14  without its DNA properties?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm just going

         16  to ask one more question.  I have a lot, but I'll

         17  ask one, and then I'll go to some of my colleagues.

         18  But one of the most interesting things you said

         19  right off the bat, the CSI Effect.  You mentioned

         20  how you're helped by the fact that it's more

         21  understandable to the juries now, what you're

         22  discussing, and they pretty much have an idea of

         23  what happens at a crime scene.  A basic idea, just

         24  from watching television.  But you said it has its

         25  drawbacks.  And one that I can tell you about is the
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          2  fingerprint situation.  I'm going to ask you about

          3  that.  I mean, people watch TV, and they assume

          4  there's fingerprints in every case, or of every gun.

          5    And at trial, what happens is, the prosecutor, for

          6  whatever reason, won't bring up fingerprints,

          7  because they don't exist.  And then on summation, a

          8  good defense attorney won't ask any questions during

          9  the trial, but on summation will say, "And they want

         10  you to put my client in jail, and where are the

         11  fingerprints?  You know if his fingerprints were

         12  there, you would have heard about it.".  And

         13  invariably, juries are swayed by that, because they

         14  think, "I saw it on TV, and they should have it".

         15                 So explain --  without me going on

         16  any longer  -- explain why it is so harmful, and

         17  what actually happens with fingerprints.  And if

         18  there are any other examples of this CSI Effect that

         19  you've noticed.

         20                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: CSI Effect,

         21  as we look at it, and as the criminal justice system

         22  looks at it is the idea that if you look, especially

         23  like in New York, if at any point in time, you look

         24  on television, there's probably somewhere between

         25  ten and twelve programs that cover some type of
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          2  forensic evidence.  Or some type of forensic

          3  evidence collection.  Not only just CSI, but Court

          4  TV, from a number of other programs.  What we look

          5  at, or what happens in the jury is exactly what you

          6  were saying, Mr. Speaker, is exactly correct, is

          7  that there is an expectation now, of people who

          8  watch these programs and sit in a jury pool as to

          9  what type of forensic evidence should be collected

         10  at a scene, or at least, that there should be

         11  existing forensic evidence at every scene.

         12                 When you look at a lot of these

         13  program, the programs continually, or all the time,

         14  will come up with fingerprints, let's say, for

         15  example, on firearms.  Fingerprints on firearms,

         16  especially semi- automatic firearms, generally are

         17   -- not that they're nonexistent, but they're not

         18  that easy, at this point, to be able to actually

         19  have fingerprints on the firearm, or a fingerprint

         20  of value.  What we do at this point, is that we will

         21  process all firearms for fingerprints.  Through a

         22  cyanoacrylate process or through a fingerprint

         23  powder process.  We do that basically, to be able to

         24  show that we made the attempt to collect the

         25  forensic evidence.  What will happen a lot of times
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          2  in the courtroom testimony is, we will provide

          3  what's called negative testimony.  And what that is,

          4  is that we will actually quote studies, one study on

          5  the firearms end, is a study that was conducted by

          6  ATF, out of Walnut Creek, California, in which they

          7  did 500 firearms, processed them for fingerprints to

          8  see whether or not fingerprints actually existed on

          9  firearms.  In their study, they come up with a

         10  litany, actually eight different categories of why

         11  you don't get fingerprints on firearms.  From the

         12  finish of the firearm, to the way the firearm is

         13  handled, to the way the firearm is actually rubbed

         14  against clothing or material at some point in time,

         15  prior to coming into police custody, and they also

         16  go into detail as to the fact that most of the time,

         17  fingerprints, in three to five percent of the cases

         18  that they do get fingerprints, those fingerprints,

         19  in many times come back to law enforcement

         20  personnel, who have either put their fingerprints on

         21  certain parts of the firearm in removing the firearm

         22  from the complainant or the perpetrator, or in

         23  trying to make the firearm safe.  The jury, at that

         24  point, does have an expectation that they'll always

         25  be fingerprints on firearms.  So just in firearms
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          2  alone, we will provide negative testimony.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What other

          4  expectations would a jury have, based on TV, that

          5  might not be true?

          6                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: We have,

          7  especially in some cases, you'll see arson cases, or

          8  cases in which a lot of your actual physical

          9  evidence or forensic evidence may be burned off. In

         10  an arson case, if it's something that's used from an

         11  accelerant, such as say gasoline or kerosene, or

         12  another petroleum- based accelerant, most of that's

         13  burned off in the fire.  They're going to believe

         14  that we're going to be able to find an awful lot of

         15  accelerant.  All that accelerant is going to exist.

         16  They're also going to believe that there's going to

         17  pre- exist, or be existing at the scene, an enormous

         18  amount of forensic evidence, as presented in most of

         19  the cases.  In many cases, that's not the case.

         20  Meaning that arson cases, for one, between the

         21  destruction that happens at the fire scene, as well

         22  as the actual suppression of the fire through water

         23  or some other type of fire suppression mechanism,

         24  many times, either contaminates or eliminates a lot

         25  of forensic evidence.  It can become problematic, as
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          2  to the existence of some forensic evidence, but not

          3  a lot of forensic evidence.

          4                 And then the other situation is that

          5  we will testify to a degree of scientific certainty,

          6  which a lot of times, we're going to testify to the

          7  idea that we cannot actually pinpoint what type of

          8  accelerant this is.  Based upon contamination, or

          9  based upon other types of fluids.  When you

         10  basically hear testimony in the CSI Effect, it's

         11  absolute.  We do not always provide absolute

         12  testimony.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm going to

         14  turn it over now to Council Member Nelson for some

         15  questions on his bill, and whatever else he'd like

         16  to get into.  And some of the other members.  And

         17  then come back to some of my own.

         18                 I'd like to first introduce some of

         19  the members that have joined us.  We have Minority

         20  Leader, Council Member Oddo, on the left, there.

         21  Not usually on the left, but for today  -- . Council

         22  Member Katz.  And Council Member Garodnick, one of

         23  our   -- if not our newest member.  Thank you all

         24  for coming.  And turn it over to Council Member

         25  Nelson.

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you

          3  Chair Vallone.

          4                 I haven't actually watched CSI, so

          5  I'm not in the awe of the media aspects.  I'm in awe

          6  of what you men and women do, though to help our

          7  City, and protect our City.  I do love Cold Case

          8  Files, but that's long after the crime.  So we're

          9  not dealing with that at the moment.

         10                 And perhaps, in reality, the Police

         11  Department itself, as an entity, would do the

         12  cleaning, itself, or the determination.  That's yet

         13  to be really hammered out.  And I agree with you,

         14  certain aspects, certain crimes, should not fall

         15  upon the City's responsibility, whether it's

         16  suicide, domestic violence, or things like that.  So

         17  we're open to tweaks with that.

         18                 But the hazmatous (sic) if you will,

         19  situation. Hazmat.  When the men and women come in

         20  dressed  --  you know, obviously, Tyvek suits,

         21  rubber boots, shoe covers, head covers, sleeve

         22  covers, different type of gloves, and what have you.

         23    I think that's perhaps my prime witness, so to

         24  speak.  After that, after they do their stuff, and

         25  they may not be concerned about cleaning up, maybe
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          2  body parts, or the slight, almost indistinguishable

          3   --  or blood on the sidewalk.  We have to

          4  understand the danger, the inherent danger with

          5  that.  Hence the reason for this.

          6                 We really, again, have to put

          7  ourselves in the position of a person.  You come

          8  home, wherever you're living, and you find out that

          9  some freak broke into your apartment and then

         10  committed crimes, and the apartment or house was

         11  shot up, and there was all this bio- hazardous waste

         12  materials around.  And basically, if you're left to

         13  take care of this, that is my concern.  And really

         14  the gist of this Intro.

         15                 So I just wanted that for the record,

         16  and for the statement.  We really have a problem

         17  with that.  And again, I suppose if it doesn't hit

         18  home, and thank God, it didn't hit home, home.  But

         19  it was in my old neighborhood.  And I want everybody

         20  to put themselves in that position.  If they were to

         21  walk into a situation like that, and see these

         22  things.  What your feeling would be, and what would

         23  you try to do about it?

         24                 With that, I thank you for appearing,

         25  and I thank you Chair Vallone.  I've got to vote on
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          2  something upstairs.  I'm going to come back.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

          4  Councilman Addabbo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you

          6  Madam Acting Chair.

          7                 I want to thank the Police Department

          8  for being here today, and for their time and

          9  testimony.  I am not a sponsor of Intro. 123.  My

         10  jury is still out on this piece of legislation. But

         11  if you could just clarify a couple of things,

         12  because I think NYPD may be  --  or some City agency

         13  may be involved in the clean up at some aspect.  But

         14  at any point, correct me if I'm wrong, but in your

         15  testimony, you already said that you are already

         16  involved in the crime scene.  You have identified

         17  the crime scene, you have access to the property.

         18  That's correct, right?  So you're already in there.

         19  And if not the NYPD, the City does have materials,

         20  basically, that could help in the clean up of those

         21  crime scenes. If not the NYPD, the Department of

         22  Health, the Fire Department, EMS.  So maybe if the

         23  legislation is too narrowly drawn up, maybe a

         24  broader interpretation.  What is your impression

         25  upon possibly other City agencies taking up the
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          2  active clean up.  They may be more inclined, or they

          3  may be more equipped than the property owner.

          4                 MS. PETITO: Susan Petito, from the

          5  Police Department.  I think that it is a much

          6  broader issue than just the Police Department.  The

          7  bill squarely places the responsibility for private

          8  property on the Police Department, which again, we

          9  cannot undertake that responsibility.  But it does

         10  raise the broader issue of, is the City responsible

         11  for clean up on private property?  Does the City

         12  want to undertake what could be a massive exposure

         13  for expense.

         14                 On public property, it's a little

         15  different.  And again, the bill defined public

         16  property as any governmental property, but in fact,

         17  it doesn't limit itself to City- owned property.  So

         18  that's why we also have something of a problem with

         19  that, because for example, if it's federal property,

         20  if it's State owned property, it's still public

         21  property.  But should the City be required to

         22  undertake the expense of that clean up as well?

         23                 I think for you know, what goes on

         24  right now, is that other City agencies are

         25  definitely involved in clean up on public property.
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          2  For example, sidewalks.  When we are finished with a

          3  crime scene, when the Police Department has ended

          4  its role, certainly we contact other City agencies,

          5  depending on the circumstance.  It could be the

          6  Sanitation Department.  It could be DEP.  It could

          7  be the Health Department.  So it's a much broader

          8  issue when dealing with public property.

          9                 But I think the real line in the sand

         10  on this one for us in the Police Department is the

         11  bill's insistence that the Police Department clean

         12  the crime scene on private property.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes.  While

         14  being mindful that each crime scene is different on

         15  a case- by- case basis, and also mindful that the

         16  circumstances are different with regards to public

         17  property and private property, I still think that

         18  the City is more  --  and when I say City, it could

         19  be the NYPD, it could be any other City agency  --

         20  is more involved with that crime scene than the

         21  property owner will ever be.  And that the City is

         22  more inclined or more apt to clean up the crime

         23  scene, because obviously, the property owner may not

         24  be used to seeing the issues that a crime scene

         25  have, given the gore and given the circumstances.
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          2  Where I think the City has obviously been involved

          3  in the crime scene.  So I think the City is in a

          4  better position than the property owner to do that.

          5                 And that's with the new legislation.

          6  Currently, the property owner would have, obviously,

          7  the obligation to clean up. Does the property owner

          8  know, or have information to how to clean up the

          9  property of the crime scene?  I know there are

         10  services available, but how do we make this

         11  information available to the property owners?  Can

         12  they call 311 and get information on services that

         13  can provide clean up for the crime scene?

         14                 MS. PETITO: I don't believe that 311

         15  has a list of clean up specialists at this point.

         16  Police officers, by rule, cannot steer business, by

         17  Department rule, and so we would not be in a

         18  position at the scene to make such a referral.  But

         19  we could certainly talk about if the City, or if a

         20  victim's services entity wanted to collect and

         21  provide lists of bio- hazard recovery companies, or

         22  companies that specialize in this, we could

         23  certainly talk about that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: I don't want

         25  to take the issue from who is to clean up the crime
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          2  scene, but a separate issue could be, how do we

          3  inform residents and property owners better as to

          4  the services that are out there?  What is your

          5  opinion about the City contracting out certain

          6  services?  If you're saying the NYPD is not inclined

          7  to, or may not be able to clean up a crime scene,

          8  and we don't want to talk about other City agencies,

          9  what about the City contracting out, and they

         10  obviously, contracting these other services?

         11                 MS. PETITO: Well again, when you're

         12  talking about private property, I think the basic

         13  proposition is that the City is not in a position to

         14  undertake that responsibility on private property.

         15  Whether it's by contract or by City agencies,

         16  undertaking  --  doing it themselves.

         17  Notwithstanding which City agency it would be.  I

         18  think that's a much bigger discussion than we're

         19  prepared to have as the Police Department.  It would

         20  really require an Administration position that I

         21  don't think we've reached yet.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: You see, my

         23  only point is that  --  well, one of my points is

         24  that the City is already on the private property.

         25  They already know the crime scene.  They're already
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          2  there.  They already know the situation.  They

          3  already have been on the private property.  And my

          4  legal, and as a lawyer, I figured that there can be

          5  some document, there could be any document I could

          6  draw up that can be drawn up and created, and

          7  crafted, to allow access to that private property

          8  for clean up. And protect the City's interest as

          9  well, if you're worried about liability.

         10                 MS. PETITO: Well I think that's one

         11  concern, but the major concern is the cost.  What

         12  City agency would be responsible for doing that?

         13  And then not be able to do other things that are

         14  necessary for the City, as opposed to a private

         15  property owner, who may have insurance, which would

         16  cover clean up, or can make a claim at the Crime

         17  Victims Compensation Board to assist them in getting

         18  you know, payment for engaging a clean up recovery

         19  service.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Again, I'm

         21  not too sure if an insurance policy would actually

         22  cover the clean up of a crime scene.

         23                 MS. PETITO: I believe most homeowners

         24  policies do.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Again, just
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          2  to wrap up.  You would be open to a dialogue for

          3  discussion if the piece of legislation was drawn up

          4  a little bit more broad, to include not -  maybe not

          5  the NYPD, but other City agencies, possibly better

          6  equipped to clean up a crime scene.  Is that

          7  correct?  Or no.

          8                 MS. PETITO: Well my feeling is that

          9  certainly the Police Department would not be the

         10  entity that would make that decision.  It would be

         11  the Administration.  The Mayor's Office would need

         12  to talk to the other potentially affected agencies.

         13  My feeling is that the City would be very reluctant

         14  to undertake clean up of crime scenes on private

         15  property.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Even though

         17  you already have access, and have been on that

         18  private property.

         19                 MS. PETITO: Yes.  Because our job

         20  ends when we finish processing the crime scene.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Currently.

         22                 MS. PETITO: That's right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you

         24  very much.  No further questions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member
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          2  Oddo.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you Mr.

          4  Chairman.

          5                 Good morning folks.  The Chairman

          6  kidded around about the reference to the O.J.

          7  Simpson, the Simpson trial, but I think it's a point

          8  of reference that I'd like to kind of focus on. I

          9  thought you did a great job in explaining what I

         10  think is a somewhat complex issue.  I'm interested

         11  in the relationship that you have with the District

         12  Attorney's Offices, and specifically, the ADAs who

         13  have to try these cases.  So if you could sort of

         14  explain how you interact with them, and specifically

         15  in terms of training.  Is there joint training so

         16  you guys are both on the same page?  And after that,

         17  if you can  --  and I don't know if you're equipped

         18  to say it, I don't know if   --  you testified to

         19  it, I don't know if it's perhaps more germane to the

         20  District Attorney's Office, but how successful are

         21  we in terms of prosecutions?  And how efficient have

         22  defense attorneys become in terms of matching your

         23  knowledge of this new technology and this new

         24  science in sort of countering the good works that

         25  you folks are trying to do?
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          2                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: Most of what

          3  we do with the District Attorney's Office is, we

          4  explain to them our end, which -  and we're going to

          5  provide in every case that we process, a photo log,

          6  which is going to detail the photos which actually

          7  starts to set the groundwork as to our evidence

          8  collection.

          9                 Every piece of evidence that we

         10  collect is measured, and actually documented on a

         11  sketch to be able to not only recreate the scene

         12  should we have to do that, but also to be able to

         13  show where we picked up the evidence in relationship

         14  to the scene itself.

         15                 We will also provide for them a

         16  request for laboratory analysis, which is our

         17  determination as to what type of forensic analysis

         18  we're requesting the evidence to be  --  to actually

         19  be done to the specific piece of evidence.

         20                 So we start the chain of custody at

         21  that point, as to the collection of evidence.  The

         22  chain of custody as to the preservation of the scene

         23  is started when the first officer, which we will

         24  identify upon our arrival as the safeguarding

         25  officer, is present at the scene.  So he or she
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          2  starts the safeguarding of the scene.  We then start

          3  the evidence collection process, and explain out the

          4  collection methodology that we use in order to

          5  collect the evidence.  We explain out the analysis

          6  that we're requesting for the evidence, based upon

          7  the conditions found at the scene.  We will explain

          8  to them the packaging and the safeguards that went

          9  into effect in order to collect the evidence.

         10                 Basically, the Tyvec suits, the

         11  booties, the sleeves, and what we talk about there

         12  is more contamination issue. To be able to  --

         13  especially in the O.J. Simpson case  --  be able to

         14  testify that we did not cross- contaminate a sample.

         15    Meaning I did not bring blood on my shoes from the

         16  hallway into a private area.  And the way we do that

         17  is through a contamination barrier, which is the

         18  Tyvec suit.  Changing of gloves, we'll testify to

         19  all that.  We'll testify to the cross- contamination

         20  prevention methodology that we did.

         21                 We will then testify to the idea of

         22  how this evidence actually was packaged, and how

         23  that we will be able to testify to the Medical

         24  Examiner being looking at the packaging, saying that

         25  they received it in this condition, which is
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          2  basically establishing the chain of custody to the

          3  Medical Examiner's Office.

          4                 That's the end that we actually

          5  produce with the District Attorney.  As far as

          6  evidence collection, evidence preservation, and the

          7  chain of custody to the Medical Examiner's Office.

          8                 What will happen at that point, is

          9  that there will be an ongoing dialogue between us,

         10  the Medical Examiner's Office, and the District

         11  Attorney's Office, concerning the evidence itself.

         12  Processing of the evidence for DNA analysis would be

         13  the purview of the Forensic Biology Unit out of the

         14  Office of the Chief Medical Examiner's Office.  So

         15  they would be talking to the actual criminalist that

         16  processed that evidence as to how the DNA was

         17  extracted.

         18                 Currently, in the Medical Examiner's

         19  Office, in the expansion of their new laboratory,

         20  they are also including in discussions with us, a

         21  training program for District Attorneys as to how to

         22  properly, or the best way to present DNA evidence

         23  and the DNA process.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: The Police

         25  Department has sort of set the standard in terms of
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          2  self- analysis, as an agency.  Do you have specific

          3  numbers  --  and again, it may fall outside your

          4  specific purview  --  but in terms of analyzing the

          5  success rate of your own division, do you have

          6  numbers of just how many cases where the NYPD

          7  testified, how many of those cases were successful?

          8  How many of those cases were not?  I don't know if

          9  you can pinpoint exactly the reason why the case was

         10  not successful on inappropriate testimony.  But if

         11  there's a way of determining how often you folks do

         12  testify in these types of cases, and how many of

         13  those cases eventually lead in a guilty verdict.

         14                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: That

         15  documentation is more in the purview of the District

         16  Attorney's Office.  And again, when we talk about

         17  DNA evidence, there is a wide range of what happens

         18  to DNA evidence.  Meaning not every piece of DNA

         19  evidence generates an identification or called a 13

         20  loci profile.  There's mixed contamination.  There's

         21  an awful lot of things that can go on with DNA

         22  evidence that may not actually identify an

         23  individual.  When it doesn't identify and

         24  individual, it goes to mathematical probabilities.

         25  If you are identified on a 13 loci profile, a
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          2  complete profile, then your mathematical probability

          3  that it's you is one in three billion.  As that loci

          4  number, which is the 13 loci, or 13 identifiers that

          5  are set by the FBI in CODIS, as that number

          6  decreases, to 10, 11, 12, the mathematical

          7  probability of being you also decreases.

          8                 So a lot of times it's not the

          9  collection of the DNA evidence, it's the way that

         10  the DNA evidence may have been, or what may have

         11  happened to the DNA evidence before we collected it

         12  that may not produce complete DNA profiles.  But

         13  prosecution- wise, it would be more the District

         14  Attorney's side.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: You did a good

         16  job of explaining when the Crime Scene Unit goes to

         17  what specific types of crimes or events, and then

         18  when the Patrol Borough- based Evidence Collection

         19  Teams go out.  And you talked about how you've

         20  expanded on the pilot program.  Can a victim of a

         21  crime that falls outside of the specific events that

         22  you've laid out, a victim of a burglar, a routine

         23  burglary at home, victim sees something, or maybe

         24  the police officers didn't see, or   --  can a

         25  victim of a crime specifically ask for an Evidence

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  Collection Team to come in?  Or is that just sort of

          3  routine that the officers responding to the crime

          4  would see it?

          5                 MS. BISHOP: Lieutenant Bishop, from

          6  the Queens North Evidence Collection Team.  We are

          7  required to respond to every burglary.  Whether it's

          8  residential or commercial.  We're going to go to

          9  this burglary and our basic function is to look for

         10  fingerprints, and now any DNA that is at the scene.

         11                 If for some reason we leave that

         12  scene and this person, this victim discovers

         13  something that we may have missed, they do have  --

         14  they can contact us to come back.  Yes.  That is

         15  possible.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

         17  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you

         19  Council Member Oddo.

         20                 I missed some of the testimony

         21  regarding the crime scene clean up bill, but based

         22  on our previous conversations, let me just  --  your

         23  objections to this bill could be summarized as

         24  number one, the bill defines the definition of the

         25  crime scene is too broad.  It says illegal activity
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          2  which would include suicides, and things that

          3  perhaps the City shouldn't be responsible to clean

          4  up after.  Number two, it specifies the Police

          5  Department, which the Police Department doesn't

          6  clean these scenes in general, there are other

          7  agencies that do that.  Number three, the overall

          8  cost that the City might have to incur.  Number

          9  four, the bill says that you have to provide a list,

         10  or they can just decline these private services, and

         11  have the City clean this, and there are no

         12  parameters set to as to who can decline.  And I

         13  guess last, and least, the list itself is not a

         14  business you would like to be in, recommending

         15  private companies and keeping the list updated.  Is

         16  that a fair summary of some of the objections?

         17                 MS. PETITO: Yes.  There's an

         18  additional one that the definition of public

         19  property includes property that's not City owned.

         20  For example, State or federal property, NYCHA

         21  property, Transit Authority property.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And because  --

         23  obviously, there are some concerns with the way the

         24  bill is written, which some can be easily fixed and

         25  some can't, but we are concerned as a Committee
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          2  about the proper disposal of some of this medical

          3  waste. For example, if there are you know, body

          4  parts, or brain remnants at a scene, and you leave

          5  and advise them what to do, there's no guarantee

          6  that I know of that they're going to follow those

          7  guidelines that you've given them, and they may just

          8  pick this up, put it in a plastic bag, and throw it

          9  in the garbage.  Which is why we're discussing this

         10  situation and trying to find a way to stop that from

         11  happening.

         12                 Do you know of any safeguard?  What

         13  would prevent someone from doing that, throwing

         14  human remains in the garbage once you leave the

         15  scene?

         16                 MS. PETITO: I don't personally know.

         17  I think there's probably over- arching rules or

         18  guidelines or laws that I'm not personally familiar

         19  with, regarding the disposal of medical waste, which

         20  would apply to people, individuals.  But again, I

         21  don't personally know.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think my point

         23  is, if you don't personally know, neither would the

         24  person who is left with the brains in their

         25  apartment.  How to actually get rid of these brains,
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          2  and comply with the law.  I should get onto a

          3  different body part maybe.

          4                 The blood.  Yes.  Not to monopolize

          5  the time, but there are other things I think we can

          6  work together on, and remove, perhaps, the Police

          7  Department from the duty, and define the crime scene

          8  better, and perhaps put some other guidelines in

          9  there.  But I'm sure that Council Member Nelson and

         10  his staff will be working with you in the future on

         11  that.  So let me go to Council Member Garodnick.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

         13  very much Mr. Chairman.  Just a few questions here.

         14  I'm also not a co- sponsor of this legislation,

         15  although I'm interested in hearing your testimony,

         16  and recognizing, of course, what Council Member

         17  Nelson said, we do need to think about this from a

         18  couple of different angles.  Of course, being the

         19  family of a victim, and what you're forced to deal

         20  with under those circumstances, obviously is

         21  something we're all sensitive to.

         22                 But we're also sensitive to the

         23  practicalities of all this, and you have testified

         24  to a number of them.  I wanted to ask you first,

         25  what your view is specifically on the cost of this
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          2  legislation to the Police Department or the City?

          3  What would it be?

          4                 MS. PETITO: We have no way of

          5  knowing.  We haven't made an estimate of that.  We

          6  just know it's an unknowable (sic) number at this

          7  point.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Well then

          9  we respect  -- I don't know how you could say that

         10  the cost would be staggering if you have not done

         11  the analysis of it.  I'm reading the testimony here

         12  which says that the costs for the cleaning

         13  contemplated by the bill could be staggering.  But I

         14  don't know what the basis for that is.

         15                 MS. PETITO: Well, the basis is how

         16  many crime scenes would be embraced by the bill.

         17  It's not just what we would call a crime scene, but

         18  it could potentially be any death at home, where

         19  there was some illegal activity which took place at

         20  the premises, which may or may not be related to the

         21  death.  So it could include natural deaths as well

         22  as suicides, drug overdoses.  There's no way --  we

         23  haven't attempted to quantify it.  But we do

         24  sincerely believe that the costs could be

         25  staggering.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: If you were

          3    --  I actually don't have much of a sense of

          4  where, if you were to peel off suicides and drug

          5  overdoses from all of the definition that is

          6  included right here, would that reduce the number of

          7  situations involved by what percentage would that

          8  take us down to?

          9                 MS. PETITO: I don't know the

         10  percentages.  I think it certainly would tightening

         11  up the definition would reduce the potential cost,

         12  absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  But

         14  at the end of the day, we just haven't done the

         15  analysis of costs.  The Police Department has not

         16  done an analysis of the costs.

         17                 MS. PETITO: No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I share

         19  your view that this is a significant costs, but I

         20  just  --  you know, before we say staggering, I just

         21  caution you that you know, we should know the

         22  numbers before we do that.

         23                 The other question I had for you is,

         24  the Department rule on the subject of referring

         25  victims to companies providing clean up services.
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          2  Understanding of course, the principles that

          3  government should not be promoting any private

          4  business, in a circumstance like this, where perhaps

          5  any private entity could be on a list, perhaps, what

          6  would be the objection to the Police Department, if

          7  any, to handing over a list of anybody who wanted to

          8  be on the list who is a provider of this sort of

          9  service?

         10                 MS. PETITO: Well I think it's an

         11  implicit recommendation.  And obviously, our rules

         12  prohibit us from steering business in any particular

         13  direction.  If there were to be a comprehensive list

         14  compiled maybe by the City as a whole, or by another

         15  entity, like a victim's services group, I don't

         16  think we would have an objection to handing that

         17  list out.  But we cannot be the entity which decides

         18  who goes on the list.  Because we certainly want to

         19  not be responsible for updating it.  And making sure

         20  that the companies on the list are vetted, are

         21  appropriately on that list.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Understood.

         23    I think that frankly makes a lot of sense.  But as

         24  a principle, you do not have a problem if the list

         25  were vetted by somebody else, and approved by
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          2  somebody else, and were inclusive, and whatever.

          3  You don't have any  --  you wouldn't have any

          4  principle objection to handing a list of providers

          5  out at a crime scene.

          6                 MS. PETITO: I don't believe so.  We

          7  would not be violating our rule in that case, if the

          8  list  --  we were not "steering business".

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: The last

         10  question I had for you was on the public property

         11  piece of this.  I heard very clearly your concerns

         12  about how you define public property.  It's not just

         13  a street we're talking about here, as written, and

         14  how we could tailor or finesse this to make it more

         15  specific, is one question.  I just wanted to

         16  understand how clean up is done on a public street

         17  today.  My understanding is that it is the

         18  Department of Sanitation, except if there are other

         19   --  if there's blood or other human remains.  Is

         20  that correct?

         21                 MS. PETITO: Well, it depends on the

         22  circumstances. I don't know that in every instance,

         23  the Sanitation Department would be the right entity,

         24  because if it's a chemical spill, for example, then

         25  it would be DEP.  Blood, I don't know whether or not
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          2   --  what the Sanitation Department's regulations

          3  are about how they handle blood.  Whether they

          4  handle blood or not.  But we would call them, and it

          5  they would determine what they would end up doing.

          6  Because if they would need to call in somebody else,

          7  or another kind of a  --  you know, the Department

          8  of Health.  I don't know. It also depends on how

          9  extensive it would be.  Blood.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  So I

         11  understand. So on a public street, you'd call the

         12  Department of Sanitation, and they'd make the

         13  determination as to who is probably, who is best

         14  suited to do the clean up.  If it were any other

         15  public property, federal, state building for

         16  example, you would go to the scene as you always do,

         17  but the clean up would be left to whoever the owner

         18  was of the federal or  --  I mean, it would be the

         19  government involved  --

         20                 MS. PETITO: It would be their

         21  responsibility, they may ask for our assistance, the

         22  City's assistance, but it would be their

         23  responsibility.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So explain

         25  that to me.  If it were  --  let's say we're talking
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          2  about a federal office building, and there were a

          3  crime which left behind some remains which needed to

          4  be cleaned.  And they came to the New York City

          5  Police Department.  No, not brains.  They came to

          6  the City Police Department and asked for your

          7  assistance.  What would you do in that situation?

          8                 MS. PETITO: Well I'm not speaking as

          9  the Police Department, I don't think  --  they would

         10  not come to the Police Department for assistance in

         11  cleaning, if I'm correct.  They would probably call

         12  the Sanitation Department as well.  In other words,

         13  it's  --  but it's  --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Well let's

         15  say they didn't.  Let's say that this is just a

         16  crime scene in a federal office building, and you

         17  are there as the New York City Police Department to

         18  respond.  I assume that the New York City Police

         19  Department does  --  that would be you know  --

         20  that's all well within your jurisdiction, of course,

         21  to respond to a crime scene within a federal office

         22  building.

         23                 MS. PETITO: Yes.  But I don't know

         24   --

         25                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: Generally
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          2  what would happen with those cases is that out of

          3  New York City jurisdiction, federal properties,

          4  State property.  They would have first right of

          5  refusal.  Meaning that unless the federal  --

          6  depending what the scene was, let's say in 26

          7  Federal Plaza, depending upon where the area was,

          8  the FBI may, in fact, bring their Evidence

          9  Collection Team in, in order to process the scene on

         10  federal property.

         11                 If in fact, they decided not to, and

         12  declined, and requested our assistance, we would

         13  process the scene for them.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  So

         15  let's assume it's you, since you're the only ones

         16  directly under our jurisdiction here, for oversight

         17  purposes.  And the FBI decides to pass.  It's now in

         18  your hands.  And there is clean up necessary. You

         19  would simply  --  if they asked, "What do we do

         20  here?" Which they might.  What would you tell them?

         21                 MS. PETITO: We would treat them, I

         22  supposes, as the property owner, the private

         23  property owner in that sense.  And give them advice

         24  in terms of how to mediate the situation at that

         25  moment.  But we would not undertake the
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          2  responsibility to clean it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So you

          4  wouldn't refer them to any cleaning services or

          5  anything like that  --

          6                 MS. PETITO: No.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  --

          8  Pursuant to your rules and everything.  So really,

          9  any public property that is not a street, would be

         10  treated really the same way as a private owner of

         11  any building, like what we were talking about

         12  before.  Is that right?

         13                 MS. PETITO: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  I

         15  think that's all I have.  Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you

         17  Council Member.  Just quickly, I think you testified

         18  that CSI handled 1,911 cases.  ECT handled 33,000

         19  cases.  Which is about 34,919 cases.  Out of a

         20  universe of how many?

         21                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR GOMULA: That I

         22  wouldn't know.

         23                 MS. BISHOP: Again, as I had

         24  mentioned, as far as the Evidence Collection Team is

         25  concerned, every burglary that is reported to the
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          2  precinct, we will respond to, and process.  Every

          3  burglary, we respond to grand larcenies, grand

          4  larcenies from automobiles.  Unless the victim

          5  states that they do not want the scene processed for

          6  evidence collection, they we will not respond to

          7  that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So you respond

          9  to any felony where there might be forensic

         10  evidence?

         11                 MS. BISHOP: That's basically correct.

         12    Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And there's no

         14  discretion as to which burglaries, with you unit.

         15  It's every burglary?

         16                 MS. BISHOP: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         18  Nelson has a follow up.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

         20  It's not my political philosophy that big government

         21  should be involved in every single aspect of our

         22  lives, but it's apparent to me that government needs

         23  to play a role in this, whether it's  --  I guess

         24  DP, Department of Health, maybe with Police

         25  Department with overall authority.  And you sort of
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          2   --  my colleague, Council Member Garodnick really

          3  was getting to the heart of the matter, but any

          4  other role you perhaps think that should be played

          5  in this to try to  --  again, with the people

          6  walking with rubber booties, and rubber everything.

          7  And as they should.  But then, there might be

          8  contaminants left if they leave the scene.  So would

          9  you have any suggestions, just as an end- all to

         10  this Committee, this aspect of the Committee

         11  meeting?

         12                 MS. PETITO: Well I think public

         13  education is very important.  I think this hearing

         14  is helpful in order to do that. I think that making

         15  people aware of the existence of the Crime Victims

         16  Compensation Board, and the fact that they can

         17  obtain help for professional cleaning services in

         18  the wake of a tragedy.  I think is a good thing.

         19  And I think that  --  and that's certainly something

         20  that we tell people about, but I think, you know,

         21  publicizing it in a much greater fashion would be

         22  very helpful.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Any role

         24  government itself should play in this awareness

         25  aspect?  The educational or whatever. And you
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          2  alluded to.

          3                 MS. PETITO: Well we advise people of

          4  the existence of the Crime Victims Compensation

          5  Board, and the help that they can obtain in cleaning

          6  up the crime scene.  And also just generally, in the

          7  other types of assistance that the Crime Victims

          8  Compensation Board can provide.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: All right.  I

         10  would imagine anybody who is involved in a situation

         11  like that perhaps, this should be the Police

         12  Department's authority, or responsibility, to make

         13  sure people do know they're given something, it

         14  seems kind of cold, but here's what you can do.  But

         15  at least it's something, right off the bat.  That's

         16  I think something that government should do for

         17  sure, besides any  --  where else that we're going

         18  with this.  Thank you.  Appreciate your testimony

         19  again.  And thank you Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         21  Council Member Katz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I apologize if

         23  you already went through  --  what's the mechanism

         24  now by which you tell them about the Compensation

         25  Board?  And also about the clean up?
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          2                 MS. PETITO: Well, we have pamphlets,

          3  but we basically verbally tell them at the scene.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And then you

          5  follow it up with pamphlets?  Is it for both?  The

          6  Compensation Board and the clean up crews?

          7                 MS. PETITO: No.  We don't give any

          8  information out about clean up companies, just the

          9  Crime Victims Compensation Board, and the

         10  availability of reimbursement for the costs.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So if it's on

         12  private property, basically, there are companies out

         13  there, but we don't suggest any, because of whatever

         14  reason.

         15                 MS. PETITO: Because our rules

         16  prohibit us from steering business to particular

         17  business entities.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.  Thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.  One

         21  of those companies actually will be testifying in a

         22  few minutes about private clean up.

         23                 I think we're about done with the

         24  Council Member's questions.  As you can see, there

         25  are many of us up here that have not yet signed on
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          2  to the bill or taken a position, but are very

          3  interested in both the bill and your position on the

          4  bill. Obviously, for various reasons, in my mind,

          5  the most important being the safe disposal of

          6  medical waste, so the public isn't endangered in any

          7  way.  So we look forward to you working together

          8  with Council Member Nelson and some of our attorneys

          9  here to perhaps draft a bill you have less objection

         10  to.

         11                 And with that, we thank you for your

         12  time.  And congratulate you on all the work that you

         13  do on a daily basis.  And we look forward to working

         14  with you again here, not at a crime scene anywhere,

         15  but here in these chambers, in a hearing room.  And

         16  if there is anything we can do, as a Council, any

         17  laws that you need fixed or amended, or put forth,

         18  you let us know.  We stand ready to help you.  Okay?

         19    Thank you.

         20                 Our next person testifying will be

         21  Ronald  --  with very sloppy handwriting  --

         22  Gospodari.  Something.  Gospodarski. Okay.  And he's

         23  with the Bio- Recovery Corporation.  Does crime

         24  scene clean up here in New York.  Welcome Mr.

         25  Gospodarski.
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          2                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Thank you Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And the floor is

          4  yours.

          5                 Let me first recognize the fact that

          6  we've been joined by Council Member Foster.  And

          7  that's about it.  So thank you.

          8                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: I ask everybody

          9  sitting here this morning to imagine yourself coming

         10  home from a long day at the office.  Upon your

         11  arrival home, you see the police cars, and the news

         12  media, and the horrid yellow crime scene tape that

         13  we had just heard about, surrounding your property.

         14  You rush over, trying to gain access to your home,

         15  trying to find out what's going on.  Upon your

         16  introduction to the detective in charge, who is

         17  handling the scene, you are informed that a shooting

         18  has taken place inside your home.  After hours of

         19  police interviews, the Crime Scene Investigators

         20  coming, going.  The arrival of the Medical Examiner,

         21  eventual removal of loved one's remains, you find

         22  yourself left all alone.

         23                 All alone except for the remains of

         24  the crime that took place hours before.  Alone

         25  except for the blood, the pathological waste,
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          2  gloves, and Tyvek suits, paper bags, and heaping

          3  mounds of fingerprint dust scattered about in what

          4  may seem to be a chaotic disarray.  Traumatized by

          5  the initial reality that something tragic is

          6  happening to your family, now you are confronted

          7  with the clean up of the remains of the crime scene.

          8    It has to be done.  You have nowhere else to turn,

          9  and your family has nowhere else to stay that night.

         10    Without having the resources of knowing who to

         11  call, or what to do, you take it upon yourself to

         12  clean up the remains of your teenage son.  This is a

         13  task that no one should ever have to be confronted

         14  with, but a task that occurs every few days here in

         15  New York City.

         16                 Having spent the past 24 years as a

         17  paramedic, I too have developed the skills to remove

         18  myself from the scene at hand. From discarding

         19  medical devices, latex gloves, bloodied dressings

         20  and bandages, we would just basically leave them at

         21  the scene.  It was just our way of operating.  Why

         22  not.  It's not my job as a paramedic or a police

         23  officer, or a firefighter.  We have all more

         24  important things that need to be completed.  We see

         25  it played out every day on the news channels.  Just
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          2  think about it.  Something tragic happens in one of

          3  the City parks.  The news media have a lot of video

          4  footage to air, but the scene is taped off.  But

          5  what do we see on the news the following day, is the

          6  blood- stained pavement, along with the discarded

          7  gloves and equipment from FDNY, NYPD, OCME.  Not to

          8  place any blame on these agencies, because the

          9  reality is, they are not trained as bio- recovery

         10  technicians, nor do they have the equipment or time

         11  to spend restoring crime scenes back to its preloss

         12  condition.

         13                 As it relates to my testimony here

         14  today, I use the term crime scene to include any

         15  scene that the Police Department has responded to.

         16  This is important to understand, because over 55

         17  percent of the bio- hazard scenes that we clean up

         18  are not directly related to actual crimes, but to

         19  other non- crime related scenes, such as natural

         20  deaths that go undiscovered for a period of time,

         21  industrial accidents, motor vehicle accidents, or

         22  simply someone falling down on the sidewalk and

         23  bleeding from the head.

         24                 Currently in New York City, we have

         25  regulations covered within the Sanitation Code that
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          2  state contaminated items such as blood, or blood-

          3  soaked items cannot be disposed of into the solid

          4  waste system.  On the State level, the Department of

          5  Environmental Conservation governs what is

          6  considered regulated medical waste, and who is

          7  licensed to transport and dispose of this material.

          8  On the federal level, OSHA covers employees from

          9  having to clean up or be exposed to potentially

         10  contaminated materials. By mandating training,

         11  vaccinations, and disposal guidelines.  Out of the

         12  thousands of buildings here in New York City, I

         13  would be that almost none of them have met the

         14  guidelines with respect to their superintendents or

         15  maintenance personnel.  So on a daily basis,

         16  untrained, unlicensed, and unregulated people

         17  undertake the job which no one else wants, but must

         18  be done.  On a daily basis, blood, blood

         19  contaminated items, pathological waste, and other

         20  regulated items are disposed into the solid waste

         21  system of New York City, without anyone's knowledge.

         22                 Currently, the states of California

         23  and Louisiana have passed statewide laws mandating

         24  that these scenes be cleaned up prior to being

         25  released back to the public.  The State of Florida
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          2  sends a crime victims advocate to each and every

          3  scene, allowing them to arrange for the clean up of

          4  these scenes.  Many states have reimbursement

          5  avenues available to them through the States Crime

          6  Victims Board.  Here in New York State, the Crime

          7  Victims Board can reimburse up to $2,500 for the

          8  clean up of a crime scene.  Due to logistical

          9  problems with the system, these funds are rarely

         10  tapped into.  These problems range from having the

         11  scene cleaned up on a timely basis, to improper

         12  paperwork and follow up.  The biggest reason for not

         13  tapping these funds is lack of information.  People

         14  don't know who to call or how to tap into them.

         15                 This past December, a young mother of

         16  two was bludgeoned by her live- in boyfriend, and

         17  father of here children in the Bronx.  The victim

         18  was hospitalized for many days, and ultimately lost

         19  the vision in one of her eyes.  Wishing to return

         20  home with her children, she was unable to for three

         21  months.  Not because she didn't want to, but because

         22  she couldn't get the crime scene cleaned up.  She

         23  didn't know who to call, or what to do. Here we had

         24  a person on public assistance, so her rent was being

         25  paid.  She had a place to live.  But could not get
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          2  the building management or social service worker to

          3  assist her in the clean up. So she spent several

          4  months in a City domestic violence shelter, with her

          5  two children.  Not until a shelter social worker got

          6  involved and contacted us, did the scene get cleaned

          7  up.  From December 2005 through March 2006, she was

          8  another statistic on the City's shelter rolls that

          9  didn't need to be.

         10                 Currently, several revenue streams do

         11  exist to cover the clean up costs.  These include

         12  home owner's and auto insurance policies, Crime

         13  Victims Board reimbursement, as well as private pay

         14  clients, such as property management companies,

         15  hotels, and private industry.  Almost all commercial

         16  properties need to be returned back to a preloss

         17  condition as soon as possible.  The only cog in the

         18  wheel is that no one knows where to turn for

         19  assistance.

         20                 At the very least, I ask that the

         21  City Council to enact legislation mandating all

         22  public safety agencies, NYPD, FDNY, OCME, DOH, even

         23  the 311 center operators, to provide a list of

         24  companies that are licensed, and can respond on

         25  short notice to assist those in need.  This wouldn't
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          2  cost the City a dime, and would prevent residents

          3  from being traumatized all over again, by having to

          4  clean up the crime scene themselves.  At the very

          5  most, I would ask the Council to consider funding

          6  the clean up costs for residents who can't afford

          7  it, and who don't fit into the current funding

          8  streams available to cover the costs of crime scene

          9  clean up.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.  That

         11  was some very compelling testimony.  Anyone who is

         12  watching NYC TV late at night with the hopes of

         13  being lulled to sleep, should probably turn off the

         14  TV, because some of these photos are just absolutely

         15  very disturbing.  Very disturbing with crime scenes

         16  look like, that you've probably arrived at.

         17                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: And those are some

         18  of the milder ones.  I present those for your view,

         19  to see what people are confronted with on a daily

         20  basis.  This is what's left behind.  And not to

         21  counteract the Police Department, but I've never

         22  once seen a family or a victim or a survivor

         23  informed of the State Crime Victims Board

         24  Compensation, or how to tap into it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You said there
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          2  are some laws already passed in California and

          3  Louisiana.  Do they mandate the clean up of private

          4  property?

          5                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Yes, they do.  And

          6  the reason behind that is the Police Department, we

          7  use them as the common denominator, because they're

          8  at all of these scenes, whether it's crime- related,

          9  or accident- related, or something in between.  They

         10  are the common denominator controlling that scene.

         11  And a lot of times, the Police Department themselves

         12  make scenes much more worse, by the way they process

         13  those scenes.  Chemicals they use to look for blood

         14  stain analysis.  Fingerprint dust that go all over

         15  the place.  There are several fingerprint dusts out

         16  there that are actually bio- hazardous themselves.

         17  And they're applying these substances to people's

         18  homes.  And they're not telling them about this.

         19  They're doing their job.  They're keeping their

         20  people protected.  They're sealing off the

         21  environment.  But when they're done, they wash

         22  themselves off.  They take those gloves off, and

         23  they throw them right there at the scene.  And

         24  you'll see in some of those pictures, those yellow

         25  gloves that you see laying about are from the
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          2  Medical Examiner's Office.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I believe you

          4  just said that you have not seen anyone informed of

          5  the Victims Compensation Board.  Because we just

          6  heard the police testify that they do that.

          7                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Yes, I understand.

          8  Out of the thousands of scenes that we have cleaned

          9  in this City, we have never once found somebody who

         10  stated that the Police Department had informed them

         11  of the Crime Victims process of filing applications

         12  for reimbursement, or how they can gain access to

         13  that.

         14                 And one must understand how the Crime

         15  Victims Board actually operates.  If you have

         16  something that takes place in your home today, and

         17  the scene is going to be released, so it's no longer

         18  a crime scene, and you need to move back in there,

         19  at the very least, it's going to take you, at a

         20  minimum, two weeks before you can get the approval

         21  of the Crime Victims Board to do that. And that's

         22  one of the logistical problems that tapping into

         23  that system.  People need action immediately, not

         24  two or three or four weeks, or months down the road.

         25
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Wait.  I'm

          3  confused.  The Crime Victims Board can prevent you

          4  access to your own home?

          5                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: No, what's happening

          6  is, just like I referred to the young lady in the

          7  Bronx, the people won't return to their home,

          8  because they can't get the crime scene cleaned up,

          9  nor do they want to clean it up themselves.  In

         10  order to get the Crime Victims Board to reimburse

         11  for the clean up, it's a process that's involved the

         12  filing of applications, having an investigation

         13  performed, getting the 61 from the precinct that

         14  handled it, bla bla bla down the road, and by the

         15  time they compile all the paperwork, and all the

         16  necessary documentation, it's several weeks to

         17  several months before they give their approval to do

         18  that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It was very

         20  helpful.  You went into some of the guidelines that

         21  exist regarding the disposal of medical waste.  And

         22  I think it's telling that even the Police Department

         23  representative here was not aware of what guidelines

         24  existed regarding the disposal of the remains left

         25  on the scene.
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          2                 What type of training do you need to

          3  have, and licensing, to form and work in a

          4  corporation like yours?

          5                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Well, for example,

          6  in New York State, just to handle regulated medical

          7  waste, which would be what we'd find at a typical

          8  crime scene, you need to be licensed by the Federal

          9  Environmental Protection Agency.  You need to be

         10  licensed by the New York State Department of

         11  Environmental Conservation. And then you need to

         12  have specific training that outlines, obviously, for

         13  your employees, from OSHA.  In addition to that,

         14  there's a national association, the American Bio-

         15  Recovery Association, which accreditates or follows

         16  up with training, and minimum standards, if you

         17  will, for this type of industry across the nation.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It sounds like a

         19  lot of requirements.  How many of these companies

         20  exist in New York City?

         21                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: In New York City,

         22  there is only two that are based in the City itself.

         23    There's several on Long Island, and there's

         24  several in Westchester County.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So to provide a
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          2  list, in your opinion, would not be all that time

          3  consuming.

          4                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: No, not at all.  And

          5  if fact, if you look at the attachments that I

          6  attached to my testimony, you'll see a letter from

          7  the Medical Examiner from the State of Rhode Island,

          8  and how they handle that.  They're taking the onus

          9  off of them, but also providing public assistance at

         10  the same time.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         12  Nelson, I'm sure you have some questions.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Oh yes,

         14  definitely.  Could you compare and/or contrast say

         15  123 in comparison to those already in effect in

         16  California or any of the other cities or states that

         17  have this?

         18                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Well, Louisiana and

         19  California, what they're mandating is that every

         20  scene be cleaned prior to the release of that scene

         21  back to the public.  The public being the property

         22  owner, the residents of that dwelling, or the public

         23  in general, as in private property, or public

         24  property, as in parking lots, sidewalks, parks,

         25  things of this nature.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Not too

          3  revolutionary an idea.

          4                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: That's correct.  And

          5  Louisiana has just followed.  That was just passed

          6  just several months ago.  And there are a lot of

          7  other cities and municipalities who do this on their

          8  own.  For example, Phoenix.  Phoenix actually pays

          9  for, and contracts with, private companies to

         10  perform this service.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So progressive

         12  New York City has not even entertained this idea

         13  yet.

         14                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Yes.  I don't want

         15  to necessarily blame the City.  The problem is we

         16  all assume that this is being done, and this has

         17  been cleaned up for many years.  And part of the

         18  attachments you have, you'll see a DVD and a CD.

         19  And you'll see the local news coverage and a program

         20  that Discovery had put on concerning this

         21  specifically in New York City.  Now I highly

         22  recommend that if you just take a few minutes to

         23  take a look at that.  And see the testimony of the

         24  people who are the victims or the survivors of these

         25  incidents, to see what they've had to go through.
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          2  And there is not one of them in there who would say

          3  that they go any information from the Police

          4  Department, or the FDNY, or the OCME, or the

          5  Department of Health.  Or if you picked up 311 right

          6  now, and dialed them, they wouldn't know who to send

          7  you to. This is unbelievable in this day and age.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: You point out

          9  the need for New York City to be enlightened

         10  somewhat.

         11                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Absolutely.  One of

         12  the issues of the Police Department brought up was

         13  referring the privates to private companies.  And

         14  the problem I have with that is, the Police

         15  Department does it on a daily basis.  If your car

         16  breaks down or you're in a motor vehicle accident,

         17  the first thing the police car on the scene does is

         18  call the dispatcher and ask for a tow truck. And

         19  it's a private tow truck that comes along.  So if

         20  they're not doing it, how do they say they're not

         21  doing in on one hand, and doing it on the other

         22  hand, explicitly?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: No.  I

         24  appreciate that. Thank you.  And thank you Mr.

         25  Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.  Mr.

          3  Gospodarski, what are the typical costs involved in

          4  a clean up?

          5                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: A typical cost

          6  ranges anywhere from, I'd go on the low side, $650

          7  to a max of $3,000.  Somewhere in that range.  We

          8  very rarely, I mean the Windees (phonetic),

          9  remember, in Flushing, that was an involved scene

         10  for a lot of different reasons.  So that was

         11  obviously much more.  But a typical scene, we're

         12  talking a matter of a few thousand dollars, and we

         13  multiply that by  --  let's see, the heavier scenes

         14  that the CSI units cover, which were 1,900 and

         15  change, what are we talking here?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I've got my

         17  calculator here to figure that out.  What are we

         18  talking about?

         19                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: It's not a big

         20  number in reality.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's maximum

         22  $3,000 times 34,919.

         23                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Exactly.  And that's

         24  assuming every job was paid for by the City.  A lot

         25  of people have home owners insurance, or auto
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          2  insurance.  Or they do qualify for the Crime Victims

          3  reimbursement.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I wish I could

          5  figure out my calculator.  I will eventually.

          6                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: The other issue that

          7  I had with the testimony from the Police Department

          8  is, in fact, there is no City agency, not

          9  Sanitation, not DEP, not the DOH, OCME, NYPD, FDNY,

         10  any of them that handles blood clean up, anywhere.

         11  And you can attest to this, as I have previously

         12  mentioned, when you watch the news the following

         13  day, what are you seeing on the local news coverage?

         14  You're seeing the blood stains in Central Park with

         15  the gloves laying right next to it.  Or you're

         16  seeing the gloves laid in the middle of the street

         17  where there was a shooting the night before. You

         18  should not, and we should not, as residents have to

         19  be confronted with this.

         20                 They refer, it's like New York City

         21  Housing Authority property.  Well in fact, the New

         22  York City Housing Authority, they contract with

         23  companies such as myself to have these scenes

         24  cleaned up.  They are doing the right thing.  The

         25  Police Department was trying to use it as their out,
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          2  saying they would have to cover that, but in fact,

          3  that's already covered.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me recognize

          5  Council Member Monserrate.  Thank you for joining

          6  us.  And go to his questions.

          7                 Well my calculator, which I'm still

          8  trying to get double checked, does show it comes out

          9  to about $104 million, which is a large sum, but

         10  I'll be rechecking that as  --

         11                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Assuming that was

         12  100 percent covered by the City.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Assuming the

         14  most, $3,000 at every scene, right?

         15                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: That's correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         17  Monserrate.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: You're

         19  saying it's covered.  Who would be covering it, if

         20  it's not covered by the City?

         21                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Currently, I mean we

         22  get no reimbursement from the City whatsoever.  So

         23  our costs are covered by home owners insurance,   --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: No, no.

         25  What I'm saying --  okay, so you're saying that some
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          2  of these costs can be borne by home owners  --

          3                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: The only time I feel

          4  a governmental agency should foot the bill for

          5  something is when there is no other avenue to have

          6  that done.  And that's part of the Crime Victims

          7  Board reimbursement project as well.  That's why

          8  they need to go the  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Have you

         10  been in contact with the Crime Victims  --

         11                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Absolutely.  And

         12  they do maintain a list, and we're on that list.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay.  So

         14  they do currently fund this for private homes?

         15                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: They reimburse up to

         16  $2,500 for the clean up of crime scenes, and it does

         17  not dictate whether public or private.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay.  I

         19  guess I have one question that I think concerns me.

         20  I have a little experience in these matters.  And I

         21  agree with you that it's very unfortunate. At a

         22  crime scene, you can go back several days later, and

         23  still see the remnants and other things.  But I also

         24  have a concern as it relates to the prosecution of

         25  cases.  How would you answer to a concern that
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          2  includes that once the scene is cleaned up,

          3  potential evidence that was missed the first time,

          4  could also be destroyed.

          5                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Well, your chain of

          6  custody is broken immediately upon the release of

          7  the crime scene.  So that actually makes the whole

          8  issue null and void.  There is no chain of custody,

          9  more so, as far as the District Attorney persecuting

         10  that case, that chain of custody is broken, as you

         11  know.  And there's no way to rely on that evidence.

         12  However, we have found shell casing. We have found

         13  weapons.  We have found knives.  We have found lots

         14  of things at these scenes that for what ever reason,

         15  there's lots of different reasons, and I'm not again

         16  pointing fingers, that these things weren't

         17  discovered when we were there.  And the first thing

         18  that we do is, we freeze that scene  --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Let me

         20  just interject. I understand the rules of evidence

         21  as it relates to the chain of custody.  But there

         22  are times that investigators, particularly

         23  detectives, can go back, homicide detectives, go

         24  back to a scene that's already been opened up to the

         25  public, and still find evidence that will help a
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          2  prosecution, or will help bring the investigation

          3  more towards a close.  And I don't know how do you

          4  relate those two points.  In other words, I

          5  understand, and I appreciate the break of the chain

          6  of evidence.  But I also understand, from an

          7  investigator's standpoint, that detectives go back

          8  to the scene already after it's been opened, and

          9  it's no longer a "chain of custody", and still find

         10  evidence that relates to their investigation, that

         11  could lead to a successful prosecution.

         12                 So I guess one of my concerns would

         13  be the wholesale clean up, which on one end, sounds

         14  like a very good, logical, and rationale thing,

         15  could also be a hindrance to a successful

         16  investigation.

         17                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Well, it's difficult

         18  for me to parallel your line of thinking here.  And

         19  the reason being is, again, once that scene is

         20  released, it's released.  And the whole point of

         21  getting the scene cleaned up is to remove the

         22  potential contaminates from that scene, and allowing

         23  the occupants to get back in there.  So can they

         24  discover evidence further down the road?  The answer

         25  is yes.  Is there potential for us to wipe that
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          2  evidence away?  The answer is yes.  But what are we

          3  for?   And what is the CSI team there for?  It's two

          4  different realms.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

          6  Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thanks.  And to

          8  follow up on that, some of these things don't have a

          9  chain of custody, which is necessary to prove.

         10  Obviously, if you found a gun, I was about to ask

         11  you what you would do with that.

         12                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Right.  We'd

         13  refreeze the scene.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That would still

         15  be evidence, it would just be not as compelling

         16  evidence.  It could have been planted, or come in

         17  any time after the crime happened.  So you find

         18  evidence, a gun, something, and what happens?

         19                 MR. GOSPODARSKI: Right.  We stop

         20  everything that we're doing at that point.  We call

         21  the precinct that we're doing the clean up in.  We

         22  speak to the detective squad, and they usually send

         23  somebody down and remove this evidence.

         24                 And we should also note that on the

         25  private clean ups, we get phone calls all the time
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          2  from people wanting these things cleaned up.  And

          3  the first question out of our mouth is, what

          4  precinct are you in?  And that's the first phone

          5  call we make. We make a phone call to the local

          6  squad, to make sure that number one, they knew about

          7  this incident, and number two, that the scene was

          8  released.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         10  Nelson, or does anyone else have any questions?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: No, thank you

         12  Mr. Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  I am sure

         14  that Council Member Nelson's staff will be reaching

         15  out to you to help continue to craft this bill into

         16  something that this Committee would accept, and the

         17  Police Department would have, like I said, less

         18  objection to.  I commend you for your work out

         19  there.  It's obviously not pretty by any means, but

         20  necessary to allow people to get back into their

         21  homes.   And we do all have a copy of your DVD.

         22  Thank you for that.  That might be helpful down the

         23  road also.

         24                 So you're free to go.  Thank you for

         25  your help, and we look forward to working with you.
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          2                 We have one last witness.  Constance

          3  Lesold, from the Eastern Parkway Coalition.  Who has

          4  some information regarding clean ups after arsons.

          5  No, you need to hit the button.  Please identify

          6  yourself.  Nope, still not on.  Sergeant, is he in

          7  the room?  We have a multipurpose Counsel coming to

          8  help you out.

          9                 MS. LESOLD: Technologically

         10  challenged.  Thank you very much for giving me just

         11  a minute of your time.  I was not aware of this

         12  hearing today, or I certainly would have come down

         13  here much better prepared.  I live in the Prospect

         14  Heights Crown Heights neighborhood, which, as you

         15  probably know, if you combine Boards Eight and Nine,

         16  which used to be combined, we by far, have the

         17  highest rate of suspicious fires.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Can you just

         19  please give your name?

         20                 MS. LESOLD: Oh, I'm sorry.  Constance

         21  Lesold.  And I'm representing the Eastern Parkway

         22  Coalition today.  The information that I've

         23  distributed about the March Against Fire Cuts, that

         24  march is sponsored by other groups.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I would never
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          2  figure out from your accent that you're representing

          3  Brooklyn.

          4                 MS. LESOLD: Oh well, I've been there

          5  for 40 years. I've suffered through two periods of

          6  terrible suspicious fires. The ones in the '70s and

          7   '80s and the ones that are going on now. And I

          8  always said that I would leave New York if any Mayor

          9  ever cut the Fire Department again, but I have not

         10  left.  And I'm not intending to.

         11                 I just  --  today, I'm very impressed

         12  by the testimony you've given, and your concern for

         13  these issues, and have learned a lot from the

         14  hearing.  And I thank you for it, and I hope you can

         15  get a bill together that will be passable.  I am

         16  particularly concerned about the arsons, because

         17  suspicious fires, because I've visited all of them

         18  that have so far been listed in Community Board

         19  Eight, which is, their Fire Committee is one of the

         20  sponsors of this march.  And we hope you'll all come

         21  to the site, particularly the one at 1033 Pacific

         22  Street, where four people were killed.  And a block

         23  away, another person was killed.  That fire at 1084

         24  Pacific Street on December 7th, was not cleaned up

         25  for at least December, January, February, March,
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          2  four months.  It's now cleaned up.  At the same time

          3  we said we were going to put flowers there for the

          4  homeless man.  I don't know whether that's

          5  coincidence or not.  I assume it's coincidence.

          6                 At 1033 Pacific Street, however,

          7  where we've had vigils every Friday at 5:30 in the

          8  morning, in the hopes of warning people that this is

          9  when these suspicious fires, with accelerant are

         10  happening, and people are being burned out of their

         11  homes, and the buildings padlocked, and they go off

         12  to some shelter somewhere, and at 1033, there has

         13  still been no clean up.  Now this has happened on

         14  February 24th, that's March and April.  Two months.

         15  Despite continuous calls to the landlord by people

         16  on the block, next door, despite vigils in front of

         17  his property, and pictures in the press, et cetera.

         18  And despite two summonses to the site.  The landlord

         19  has done nothing to get it cleaned up.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I just need to

         21  limit your testimony to what we have this hearing

         22  about.

         23                 MS. LESOLD: Well that's  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I feel your

         25  pain, because I was just on Channel Nine two nights
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          2  ago about a site in my district for two years.

          3  There was a fire.  It hasn't been cleaned up.  But

          4  we only have the jurisdiction of the Police

          5  Department, and we --

          6                 MS. LESOLD: Well, I'm very concerned,

          7  as a taxpayer, and the other people would be too,

          8  that where there is a landlord, there is a

          9  suspicious fire, who makes no effort to clean up his

         10  property, I do not think that our scarce resources,

         11  certainly not the Fire Department, which is

         12  extremely busy, nor to tell the truth, the Police

         13  Department, should have to clean up, or others that

         14  are very scarce in my neighborhood.  We only  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What happens is,

         16  the Health Department has to give them violations,

         17  and then the Sanitation Department can come out and

         18  clean it.  But on the property.  That I just found

         19  out.

         20                 MS. LESOLD: Well, they've been given

         21  two summonses, and that is not happening.  Now this

         22  is very distressing to a neighborhood.  That is

         23  having all these arson fires.  It makes it look like

         24  no one cares.  And there are serious questions,

         25  because in only one of these many, many fires in
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          2  this one area, has there even been an arrest.  So it

          3  makes it look like nobody does care. But we do not

          4   --  where there is insurance, where there is a

          5  property owner who appears indifferent, and who is

          6  probably a suspect, I would remind you that 30

          7  landlords were invited to the Police Department to

          8  testify, and only three showed up.  Or to help.  You

          9  know, do not write your bill so that it gives aid to

         10  people who already have insurance coverage.  It puts

         11  your money and efforts into enforcement of what they

         12  should be doing, and helping the neighborhood.

         13                 Thank you very much.  And I hope that

         14  you will come to that march on the 6th.  It's the

         15  only way we have of getting a broader public

         16  knowledge of the extent of the suspicious fires that

         17  are going on.  It's a real problem.  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you for

         19  coming down.  And your insurance point is a good

         20  one.  We'll take that into consideration.

         21                 This hearing is now adjourned.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 12:05 p.m.)

         23
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